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An Historical Sketch of the Arvida High School

by H. H. CALDER, School Principal

The history of the Arvida High School goes back to the year 1926. At that time the Aluminum Company
of Canada, realizing the necessity of providing educational facilities for the children of its Protestant employees,
opened the first Protestant school in a construction camp not far from the site-of the present barber shop in the
Vaudreuil section of the city. This school was attended by some forty-five pupils. The chief interest of many
of these children was learning to speak English. The school was under the supervision of Miss Irene Kelley
with Miss Copeland as assistant. The school was moved later to a house on the site formerly occupied by the

7Late Mr. Ernie Douglas.

PICTURE OF THE ARVIDA HIGH SCHOOL PUPILS TAKEN
IN 1927. Front Row, left to right: F. McLeod, E. Enslev, G.
McNutt, R. Willows, R. Dawson, Robert Morrison, Buddy Reid,
- John Beresford, H. Hurley, A. McNutt, R. Wyber, W. Henry,
J. Bullock, Joe Van Damme, James Beresford, W Whitaker,
W. Beresford. 2nd row: W. McRae, C. Clark, ?, B. Rowley,
Eva Martin, N. Lethonen, B. Dawson, J. MeRae, M: Hurley,

rison, G.:

M. Gale, M. DpBose, E. Willows, E. Lequesne; M. McLeod, E

Douglass. 3rd Row: R. Whitaker, R. Wake, ?, E. Dearasaugh, M.
Rawley, 2, R. Morrison, H. Johanson, Teacher, J. Martin, P.
Murmaccl, ?, John Van Damme, Anthony Marrinaci, A. Mor-
Gule, R. Larsen. Those whom we have not been
-uble to identify are supposed to be pupils from Chute-d-
Caron. The picture was graciously lent to us by John Van
Damme and Ralph Morrison identified it.

Previous to 1927, plans for a per-
manent school building were drawn
up and approved by the Department
of Education. During the month of
- -August, 1927, a general meeting of
ratepayers was called and the first
Board of School Trustees of the
City . of Arvida was duly elected.
The members of this first board
were D. J. Wyber, J. Ward, and R.
Read, with Percy Smith as Secre-
tary-Treasurer. This board imme-
diately assumed the responsibility of
erecting a permanent school buil-
ding and organizing a regularly
constituted school. The school had
until then been financed and ope-
rated entirely as a private school by
the Company. During the year 1927-
28 the school staff was composed of
Mr. Harry Johannson, principal,

Miss Kelley. assistant principal, and |

Mrs. Johannson, primary teacher.

In the year 1928-29, two new fea-
tures were introduced into the school
programme — domestic science and
manual training. The Arvida school
was one of the very few schools in
the Province, off the Island of Mon-
treal to offer these courses, and they
have remained an important part
of the school curriculum. The first
class in manual training was taught
by Mr. Johannson, while Mrs. Jo-
hannson taught the first classes in
domestic science .

In the fall of the same year the
first school opening was held when
suitable prizes were presented for
successful work in the previous

year. The pupils presented a short
programme. This prize giving and
school concert became an annual
affair, and has been carried on ever
since.

the following years' many
improvements were made to the
school grounds, such as landsca-
ping, enlarging $he playground area,
and the erecting and maintenance
by the pupils themselves of a ska-
ting rink at the rear of the school.

As time went on Arvida grew and
the school accomodations became in-
adequate. Due to the untiring ef-
forts of the late Mr. D. J. Wyber and
the other members of the school
Board Mr.John Ward and Mr. Mat-
thew Finney, plans were drawn up
to modernize and enlarge the school.
In the summer of 1939 construction
started and - was -completed by the
early spring of 1940. Besides offering
additional classroom space the fol-
lowing additional features were pro-
vided: a domestic sicence room pro-
perly equipped, an .enlarged manual
training room, a science laboratory,
an assembly hall, a gymnasium, a
locker room and showers. From 1927
to 1947 the enrollment has increased
from 45 to 180. and the present faci-
lities are taxed to the limit.

The school had been known as
the “Arvida Intermediate School’.
Grades one to nine were taught,
with special permission _being gran-
ted to each Grade eleven and in the
year 1944 the school was raised by
the Department of Education to the

The house which first served as a school for protestant pupils. It eventually beuqme
the property of Mr. E. Douglas and now belongs to Mr A. Daris. o

status of @& high school, and has since
been known as the “Arvida High
School”.

With the raising of 'che status of
the school to that of a high school,
the staff was increased, This increa-
se in staff enabled the school au-
thorities to offer in the school a wi-
der range of subjects, notably, ty-
ping and shorthand, - physics and
chemistry, advanced mathematics.
‘With this broad curriculum, pupils
were enable to complete high school

courses leadmg to university matri-!
culation in Science or Arts and mto‘

the businessworld.

The - first High School Leavmg
Examinations to be writtten in the
Arvida High School were written in
June 1942. Since that time 69 can-
didates have sat for the examina-
tions. All but eight were successful
in obtaining their High School Lea-
ving Certificate. Of the 65 who have
graduated 33 have entered Cana-
dian universities. 27 found employ-
ment with the Aluminum Company,
9 chose teaching as a profession
while 8 became nurses.

The school has provided a sound
educational foundation for many
children whose parents have left the
area before the children had rea-
ched high school age.

To-day a temporary honour roll
hangs in the corridor of the school
bearing testimony to the large num-~
ber of former students who served
in the armed forces during World
War II, of whom several made the
supreme sacrifice.

For many years the majority of
pupils entering the school *spoke
only a foreign language. The Arvida
High School has through the years
built up a tradition of racial and re-
ligious tolerance.

Jews and Gentiles, Poles Finns,
Ukrainians and Czechs have enter-
ed its doors, and while they retain
treasured elements of their culture,
have become real Canadian citizens.
May this ever be preserved as a
proud tradition.

Softball Players

Any men in the Ore Plants, La-
boratories, Fluoride division, Metal-
lurglca.l and Inspectlon group, In-
dustrial Eng , or Teck
department who would like to pla,y
softball are invited to come out
and _play for the technical team.

Those interested should contact:
W.E. Fullerton, Phone 4235
R.C. Quittenton, Phone 2260

WE NEED PLAYERS NOW —

WE WELCOME SPECTATORS AL-

In Memory of

Simon Ross

On Sunday afternoon, the 29th
June at 3:00 P.M., the citizens of Ar-
vida will unveil a plague to the me-
mory of Simon Ross, the first settler
to establish himself on a lot which
today comprises our City. The pla-
que will be placed at- the entrance
of the courtyard between the Sague-
nay Inn and the Annex. The cere-
monies’ will be presided by Reverend
Cannon Victor Tremblay, President
of the Saguenay Historical Society.
This unveiling ceremony is part of
the celebrations to- mark the 25th
anmversary of Arvida.

The general public will be 1nv1ted

to attend this ceremony. Our rea- |

ders may be interested to know a-
bout Arvida’s first settler. We have
asked our local historian Mr. J. A.
Burgesse, Superintendent of Pro-
perties for Saguenay Power to out-
line for our readers, a short biogra-
phical sketch of Simon Ross.

Simon Ross, according to the
Hudson’s Bay Company records, in
London, England, was a cooper by
trade and he entered the service of
the great fur Company in 1830. He
was sent to Canada and served at
York Factory, in Hudson Bay. In
the following year, the Hudson’s
Bay Company acquired the lease of
the King’s Posts (Tadoussac, Chi-
coutimi, Metabetchouan, etc.) and
despatched Chief Trader John Mec-
Leod for York Factory to the Sague-
nay in order to reorganize the fur
trade in this district. With him came
Simon Ross who was given charge
of the Chicoutimi Post and “later
saw service at Tadoussac, Metabet-
chouan, Sept Iles and Pointe Bleue.

In 1847 a group of inhabitants of
La Malbaie founded a society to co-
lonize the as yét unsurveyed land
to the west of the Township of Chi-
coutimi. Simon Ross, on learning of.
this addressed 2 petition to Lord El-
gin setting forth as follows:

He was a native of Ross Shire in
the Highlands of Scotland and had
resided 18 years in Canada, 17 of
which had been spent in the Sague-
nay, in Lake St. John and on the
North Shore of the St. Lawrence.

He had married in the counfry
and had a family of eight children.

At the expiry of the lease of the
Hudson’s Bay Company in the au-
tum of 1841, he had decided to re-
main in the country and had taken
up a piece of land on the shore of
the Saguenay above Chicoutimi
where he had lived ever since, and
had created buildings and cultiva-
ted the land.

Despite repeated requests he had
been unable to obtain a title becau-
se the land had not yet been sur-
veyed.

He was the first occupant and set-
tler of thisland and prayed His Lord
ship that his rights be respected and
not included in the grant to the co-
lonization sociefy. ™

In the same year, 1847, Simon
Ross, still an employee of the Hud-
son’s Bay Company, was transferred
to the Post at Sept Iles and confi-
ded his land to Jean Gauthier dit
Larouche, by a lease executed before
maitres Thomas Fortin and John
Kane, notaries. In the agreement
mention is made of the buildings,
circumstances and dependance which
confirm what Ross set forth in his
petition. The assertion that Ross
was the first occupant and settler
is also repeated. The land, however,
is described as being situated on the
south-west shore of the River Sa-
guenay, beyond the limits of the
Township of Chicoutimi.

It is apparent, therefore, that Si-
mon Ross was the first occupant of
the piece of land in question and
that long before the region was sur-
veyed. It now remains only to de-
monstrate that this land was the
site. of the City of Arvida.

The survey of the Township of
Jonquiere which adjoins that of
Chicoutimi was undertaken in 1849
by Francois Tetu. Surveyors of unor-
canized territory were required to
indicate on their plans the presence
of settlers and that of Francois Te-
tu. which is deposited in the archi-
ves of the Department of Lands and
Forests in Quebec, demonstrates
that Simon Ross was in possession
of a strip of land lying apvproxima-
tely between the Riviere Dechénes
and the little stream which now dis-
charge the Red Mud Lake. Further=
more, a letter written by the surve-
yor indicates that Simon Ross laid
claim to all the land along this fron-
tage between the Saguenay River
and Range 111, Township Jonquiere,
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